
 

Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                September 11, 2012 

Council                                                                          Minutes                                                                   7:00 PM 

 

 

I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township was 

called to order on Tuesday, September 11, 2012 at 7:03 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, 

PA, with Tom Maxfield, Vice-Chairman, presiding.   

   

 ROLL CALL:   
 Members:  Tom Maxfield, Ted Beardsley, Laura Ray, and Allan Johnson.  Absent:  Sandra Yerger & 

Colin Guerra;   Associate Members:  Absent:  Glenn Kaye, Dru Germanoski and Hazem Hijazi.  Planner:  

– Absent (not needed);   Hellertown Liaison:  Absent - Terry Boos;  Jr. Council Member:  Vacant. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

II. OPEN SPACE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

A. PROPERTY UPDATES 

 

1. PRESERVING OPEN SPACE ACROSS THE TOP OF THE IESI LANDFILL TO 

PROVIDE A BUFFER 

 

Mr. Maxfield said he will reword this a little bit.  It was to preserve the ridgeline beyond 

the boundaries of the landfill as far as we could go and try to create a greenway to connect 

with the slopes of Steel City to the east. 

 

Mr. Beardsley said he read what Mr. Maxfield was talking about and the request for the 

Open Space Committee to go and look at it.  That’s fine.  We are short one person on the 

Open Space Committee so we need to offer whoever wants to join.  Mr. Maxfield said the 

idea was that no matter what happens, it’s probably a desirable thing to do, to try and 

preserve the ridgeline.  It’s trees and it would be nice to keep it all trees.  Feasibility of 

doing it was what the direction was.  At this point, we don’t know who is interested; who 

would be interested, and a list of property owners is available for you from Chris Garges.  

He’s got everyone’s name that you need to contact.  Mr. Beardsley asked if he thought they 

needed to contact IESI before they go and look?  Mr. Maxfield said you can drive up that 

way and see what there is to preserve.  You can get an eyeball if you want to do an 

assessment of that area or a windshield survey, but it may be a good place to start as we 

know they are one of the property owners.  A couple of us thought it was a pretty good 

idea, so if you don’t mind, check it out and give us a report maybe next month, even if it’s 

just talking to the property owners on the phone, and you may be able to tell if it’s a doable 

thing at this time. 

 

Mr. Beardsley said would you ask Chris to email us the owners contact information and the 

map?  He’d like to see a map showing the property lines, the owner’s names and their 

phone numbers.  Mr. Maxfield said he would talk to Chris Garges.  Mr. Beardsley said he 

will make the phone calls.  Mr. Maxfield said he’ll say designate the scope of the inquiry.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said there hasn’t been any other activity. 

 

Ms. Ray said she just talked to Rich Marson today, so he is ready for some follow-up now.  

He talked to his lawyer and had his other appraisal done.  He thought he was going to hear 

from Mr. Beardsley.  The appraisal is in line with the other one.  Mr. Beardsley said he will 

follow up with Mr. Marson.  Mr. Maxfield said Terry Clemons was involved with that one.  

If you are going to contact him, just let Terry know you are contacting him and keep Terry 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 2 of 14 

in the loop as he’ll come in to work out details.  Ms. Ray said he really seems favorable to 

it.   

 

Mr. Johnson said we’re one man short on the Open Space Committee, so we should offer it 

to one of the members.  They have to be a member and not an associate member.  Mr. 

Beardsley said if one of the members wants to be on the Committee, if not, we’ll ask 

somebody to be on it.  Ms. Ray said we have to move someone up from the Associate 

member to a member.  Mr. Maxfield said we could recommend Dru Germanoski at this 

point.  Dru definitely has the expertise.  Mr. Johnson said the person who becomes a voting 

member, also has to be an Open Space member.  Ms. Ray said anybody could be it.  Mr. 

Beardsley said it could be Tom or Sandy.  Mr. Maxfield said according to our by-laws, 

Sandy is a member of that committee, so maybe Sandy would like to do it on a more full-

time basis.  We should ask her.  Mr. Beardsley said any member or Associate who wants to 

go on a property inspection is certainly welcome to go.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said as an EAC why don’t we recommend that the Manager look into 

moving Dru Germanoski into the vacant voting position.  Mr. Johnson said we should let 

him know.  Mr. Maxfield said Jack will talk to Dru and see if he’s interested and if he has 

the time.  If he was moved into a voting position, we would have three others - Laura Ray, 

Sandy or himself.  Mr. Beardsley said make your suggestion for Mr. Cahalan to see if Dru 

is interested in becoming a member, then at our next meeting, when we have more 

members here, we can ask if anyone is interested if anyone is on being a Member or on the 

Open Space Committee.  Mr. Beardsley said we can address that at the next meeting and 

who can move into the vacant position. 

 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved that the EAC recommends and requests that Mr. Cahalan contact and ask Dru 

Germanoski if he would like to move into the voting position on the EAC. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger & Mr. Guerra – Absent) 

  

III. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. MONITOR AND IMPLEMENT MAINTENANCE OF THE NATIVE PLANT GARDEN 

Kathy and Mary Elizabeth Anthony were present.  Mary Elizabeth said she was the Girl Scout who 

was working on the Native Plant Garden.  She was in and out of the garden a couple of times doing 

some weeding and maintenance as she knew she couldn’t let it all go.  She was starting to think 

about a way to upkeep it and maintain it.  She can’t be around forever.  She’s been in contact with 

the Saucon Valley Girl Scouts.  She knows there are a lot of Girl Scouts always looking for service 

hours.  It’s always a big issue and she was hoping to use the garden as a necessary tool for them to 

get their service hours.  She has been talking to the overseer of the troop, Diana Severn.  Mary 

Elizabeth is trying to see if the last two weeks in May would work to meet there with Girl Scouts 

and she would start to try teaching them and passing it on to them in a way, to adopt the garden.  

That’s her general plan and was here to see if you agree.  Mr. Maxfield and Mr. Beardsley said 

that’s a great plan to pass on the knowledge.  Mary Elizabeth said right now she’s at Northampton 

Community College, but in two years she’ll be heading away and can’t be around forever.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said the biggest complaint he heard from the naysayers over the year is it will be 

taken care of for awhile and then it will just turn into a mess again.  There’s been a lot of work that 

has gone into it and he’d like to see it maintained and grow.  Mr. Beardsley said if the Girl Scouts 

adopt the garden, more people will be aware that it’s there.  It’s hard to get the word out that 

there’s a Native Plant Garden there, and you might be able to come and see what kind of plants you 

want to plant in your own yard.   

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 3 of 14 

Kathy Anthony said a really good idea would be signage.  You really need signage there and you 

need to say this is the Native Plant Garden that the Girl Scouts maintain.  You go by there and you 

don’t even know it’s there.  You see something and you’re not sure, and then you see the sign and 

it’s the park.  You need something out there to say this is what this is, come and see. 

 

Mr. Beardsley said at one time we talked about putting a sign between the two buildings here 

where the walk goes around saying “Native Plant Garden” and he thinks we should do that.  Mr. 

Maxfield said part of the problem is the Township kind of inherited that building and we don’t 

really know what to do with it yet.  Kathy Anthony said the garden is self-sustaining; does the 

house tie in with the garden?  Mr. Maxfield said it has been.  For awhile it was a project and Mr. 

Johnson was the liaison for awhile and the group wanted to make it a sustainable building, but that 

fell apart.  At one point we were looking at trying to power things over that way and some parts of 

the building with solar panels on top of the parking garage for the Police and that would have been 

fed to that building and this building also.  There have been different plans, but they fizzled.  If you 

have any suggestions, it would be interesting.  We wanted to include the garage in with the garden 

and thought the side of the garage was going to be a mural.  Mary Elizabeth said with working with 

the Girl Scouts, she’s hoping there will be someone who will come forward and say they are 

looking for a Silver or Gold project and she can say, here it is.  Mr. Maxfield said at one point they 

were thinking of painting right on it, but it could be something where you paint on marine grade 

plywood and attach it to something and taken down and maintained, or whatever you need to do.  

That would be pretty cool.  Mary Elizabeth said she put in about 75 man-hours per year maintain 

the garden.  Kathy Anthony said they didn’t mulch it yet.  They are still waiting for the mulch.  Mr. 

Maxfield said we have an email here to tell Roger to get the mulch.  It’s coming.  Kathy Anthony 

said it’s a good thing if we get virgin mulch.  The other mulch was full of seeds and made it a 

worse situation unless you let it set for two years.   

 

Mary Elizabeth said maybe next year they’d like to do the weed mats.  There needs to be another 

layer of weed mat down because the ones they used are old and torn.  Mr. Maxfield said was it 

expensive?  Mr. Beardsley said no, it’s not.  Mary Elizabeth said it’s only on the big open space 

part of the garden they would need it.  They would want to do the majority of the center.  The paths 

are already weeded, so they are not that bad.  The weeds come through the center of the garden.  

Mr. Maxfield said do you want us to look into acquiring the mats?  Mary Elizabeth said yes, for 

next year, by May.  Kathy Anthony said they targeted May as the Girl Scouts are still meeting at 

that time.  Once summer comes, they are gone.  They will grab them in May and set up a schedule. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said he will pass that on to Staff and we’ll figure out how much is needed.  Mary 

Elizabeth said they come in rolls.  Mr. Maxfield said Roger from Public Works can go over and 

figure out how many square feet is needed.  Kathy Anthony said just measure the center.  Mr. 

Beardsley said they may already have some weed mat at Public Works.  Mr. Maxfield said there 

are some drawings floating around somewhere with the measurements of the garden on them. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said he’ll also recommend signage for the future that you will just have to get an 

okay to do it and if you want to have someone do it as a project, we’ll talk about specifics.  Maybe 

at some point, you will want to come and talk about the exact kind of signage you want.  Is it for 

natives, more instructional or whatever, you let us know.  We’re getting one made for Kingston 

Park right now, so maybe we can get some prices as they do that. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said give a copy of the suggestion from Colin Guerra to Mary Elizabeth.  Colin 

works in landscaping, so he’s making recommendations per what they use for their business.  It 

might help them out. 

 

Mr. Maxfield thanked Mary Elizabeth again for all the hard work.  He said we need a maintenance 

plan. 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 4 of 14 

MOTION BY: Ms. Laura Ray moved that the EAC recommends that they would like to see an implementation 

plan for the Native Garden. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Johnson 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger & Mr. Guerra – Absent) 

 

B. WILDLANDS STEWARDSHIP SERVICES FOR LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP 

Mr. Maxfield said you should have received some emails between Ron Horiszny, Jack Cahalan and 

Kent Baird from the Wildlands.  The one from Kent starts out by saying they are looking into 

getting back to the thought of providing LST with stewardship services.  He’s not sure that ever 

existed before.  It says we briefly touched on the idea but he doesn’t remember that at all.  They are 

extending a hand here to see if we would want to do something like that.  You are aware that our 

one property with Wildlands is the Noble, Bracalante and Dyer conservation easement along the 

creek.  We did see that monitoring report and there were some mistakes on the report and we sent it 

off for corrections.  Those corrections never materialized back again.  Maybe we want to ask Mr. 

Cahalan to contact them for that.  The rest of the properties we have where there are endowments 

involved or any monitoring has been done by Heritage at this point as they are the conservation 

easement holders.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said what did the EAC think about this offer?  Ms. Ray said there’s really not much 

information given about it.  How would they get paid for doing it?  Isn’t Heritage already 

compensated for doing that somehow?  Mr. Maxfield said his understanding was that it would be 

for a fee that we would pay them, and they would have to go through the conservation easement 

language with Heritage and find out exactly what was going on with the easement and the baseline 

monitoring that was done initially.  Ms. Ray said we don’t have information that Heritage doesn’t 

want to continue monitoring the ones that they do?  The people from Heritage are friendly, 

knowledgeable and easy to work with.  Mr. Maxfield said Laura Baird has been doing some of the 

initial baseline studies on the properties that we looked into and he thought she did an excellent 

job.  He’s not aware of any problems nor were the other EAC members.  Ms. Ray said they contact 

you ahead of time when they are coming and she likes to walk around with them as they are a 

wealth of information.   

 

Mr. Johnson said he wonders if Wildlands thinks that we go out for bids?  Mr. Beardsley said he 

didn’t get that idea.  When they say there’s a professional services contract, that’s so you don’t 

have to go out to bid.  Mr. Maxfield said we just had the stewardship plan that was made up for the 

Dravecz property and that was done free for us.  They gave us a plan.  Whether we implement that 

plan or not would cost us money to do it.  Mr. Beardsley said it was free to us. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said he would like to see them do a better job and update our information on the one 

property that they do monitor in the Township.  Mr. Johnson said they should return their signed 

reports with the corrections on them.  Mr. Maxfield said he did find out from Chris Garges there 

was a property owner change on one of those three properties.  He thinks Mr. Dyer moved, but he’s 

still within the Township.  He can’t remember who it was sold it to, but that part of the report was 

right.  It was Mr. Dyer who moved and that’s what the GIS website is showing that there’s a new 

owner.  Mr. Dyer moved to the Saddle Ridge area.  

 

Ms. Ray said she doesn’t know if there’s any action to do on this.  She really doesn’t see that we 

should switch anything we are doing already.  Mr. Johnson said Heritage is our Open Space 

Consultant.  They are the ones involved from the beginning.  Mr. Maxfield said he’d like to ask 

Mr. Cahalan contact them for the updated information that we already requested.  We did make a 

motion to request that before.  He asked Diane to relay that to Mr. Cahalan that they wanted an 

updated report for their next meeting. Diane said okay. 

 

C. KEEP PENNSYLVANIA BEAUTIFUL 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 5 of 14 

Mr. Maxfield said there is a flyer and a letter from the Program Manager from Keep Pennsylvania 

Beautiful.  It seems that the thrust of this whole thing is they are trying to identify illegal dumpsites 

within the right-of-way.  He doesn’t know if they are all PennDOT roads or all roads or what.  He 

is starting to see more junk along the roads like places like Ringhoffer Road, places that are out 

there and remote.  We’ve had that perpetual problem on Riverside Drive of anything from 

mattresses to couches to garbage.  We’ve had some dumping from the City of Bethlehem with 

construction debris out that way.  This is a great idea.  We can identify a couple of sites. 

 

Ms. Ray said there was a problem out by the Chernaskey’s as they had the conservation easement 

so that side across the street, that’s been like a dump.  She hasn’t been back that way lately.  Mr. 

Maxfield said that might be one we have to address with the Police as it’s still an undedicated road 

and it might not be considered in the right-of-way.  For awhile we were having a problem on Polk 

Valley Road, but that has tapered off.  Let’s try to identify three spots.   

 

Mr. Johnson said Williams Street Extension is known for all the junk thrown out there, so that’s 

definitely one place.  They pulled junk out of there and it was like a bottomless pit.  Another place 

they pulled tires and junk out of was the current motorcycle shop between Hellertown and 

Bethlehem; it used to be a gas station.  The guy dumped a lot of stuff in the back.  They spent a 

whole day digging tires out of there and there’s still plenty of junk there, under the ground.  The 

third place is the street they clean up, Reading Road and Route 412, they noticed a place where 

stuff had been dumped and they put a parking lot on top of it.  He doesn’t think they are currently 

dumping there, but it’s been there for a long time.  Mr. Maxfield asked it they had seen recently the 

place they cleaned the tires out of on Route 412 behind the gas station?  Mr. Johnson said no.  Mr. 

Maxfield said the entire thing is flat and they chopped down a whole bunch of trees and it is now 

becoming a bypass for Route 412.  They changed the course of the creek.  They pretty much 

trashed that whole area.  They moved the whole creek and it’s going to flood.  If we consider 

Ringhoffer Road which is starting to acquire tires, and Riverside Drive has been a problem forever.  

Mr. Johnson said the springhouse down along the creek.  It’s actually on the edge of Saucon Park.  

They cleaned it up once and they just dumped stuff there again and they went back and cleaned it 

up a second time and Terry Boos said they are still dumping stuff there.  Mr. Maxfield said 

Williams Street and the springhouse section are the City of Bethlehem.  The first two places on the 

list, they will tell them these are outside of LST.  The EAC made up a list, which consisted of: 

 

 Williams Street 

 Springhouse – Laura Ray thinks it’s Creek Road and zig zags and goes to Seidersville 

 Route 412 and Reading Road 

 Ringhoffer Road 

 Riverside Drive 

 Mine Hole in front of Bergey’s on Wassergass Road 

 

Mr. Maxfield said they can relay this to Staff and then Council can decide if they want to reply and 

have the Township participate in this or not.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said there was so much garbage on Williams Street.  There’s more as you get closer 

to Bethlehem.  It’s mixed with the soil, just so much garbage. 

 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None  

 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
 

A. GIS SYSTEM – CRITERIA FOR OPEN SPACE FOR STUDENTS OF MR. JOHN 

WILSON – LAFAYETTE COLLEGE 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 6 of 14 

Mr. Maxfield said Mr. Johnson has been doing some work and talking to people.  Mr. Johnson said 

he sent an email to Mr. Wilson.  He gave three suggestions, but never heard anything back.  Mr. 

Maxfield said last time we talked about having Chris Garges talk to John Wilson because we 

figured Chris is using the GIS system every day, he could tell us what we need.  We had a wish list, 

yet we didn’t know what we were wishing for.  Chris did, so he put him on to it, but Mr. Maxfield 

hasn’t heard anything back from Chris.  He sent him all the contacts and Chris said he would 

contact John Wilson and they would talk.  Maybe Chris will get back to us with some information 

soon or maybe John will where that’s heading.  At least, Chris is on it too.  Mr. Johnson was 

talking to the Watershed Group.  Did they show any interest?  Mr. Johnson said in his email he 

mentioned a project of trying to link the photographs that were taken during the stream water 

assessment study.  Link those with latitude and longitudes and put them in the database.  He 

mentioned it and never heard anything back.  Mr. Maxfield said at the beginning of school, 

everything is very busy, but he’s sure we’ll hear from him soon or we can try and contact him.  Mr. 

Johnson said he’s learning to do the GIS on the computer that John gave to him.   

 

B. NORTHAMPTON COUNTY HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT – OCTOBER 

6, 2012 – 8:30 AM TO 2:00 PM 
Mr. Maxfield said this at Northampton Community College.  At school, they have their Eco Club 

and they have contacted Mr. Dittmar and they will be giving him some student help out there for 

that day.  He seemed to be pretty interested.  We should promote this somehow.  Diane said it’s on 

our website.  Mr. Maxfield said please ask Mr. Cahalan to put it in our newsletter as it’s a very 

valuable event. 

 

C. AERC RECYCLING EVENT – SATURDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2012 – 9 AM TO NOON 
Mr. Maxfield said in two weeks we can cover a lot of things.  All the items are free, even 

refrigerators, freezers, air conditioners.  Ms. Ray said can we put an ad in the paper?  Diane said 

she sent the flyer out to a lot of different surrounding townships; she has it on the website, and on 

the PATCH.  Ms. Ray asked if Diane could send a Press Release to the Valley Voice so they could 

list it.  Mr. Maxfield said there’s the free events page in the Morning Call where you can send your 

event and they will list it.  We should promote the heck out of it.  He asked if Diane could put it in 

the Morning Call events section. 

 

D. FALL ADOPT-A-ROAD CLEAN-UP – SATURDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2012 – 9 AM TO 

NOON 
Mr. Maxfield said we’ll do it October 27 starting at 9 am.  He asked if Public Works will be 

helping that day.  Diane said she will call AERC and then let Staff know.  Mr. Maxfield said we 

probably need a forklift.   

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AUGUST 14, 2012 MINUTES 

 
MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved for approval of the August 14, 2012 minutes. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger and Mr. Guerra – Absent) 

 

 

VII. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None 

 

VIII. TERRY BOOS – HELLERTOWN REPRESENTATIVE – REPORT – Absent 

   

IX. NON-AGENDA ITEM – None 

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 7 of 14 

 Mr. Gene Boyer was present.  He said from a public standpoint he couldn’t understand what was 

going on because he couldn’t understand the people who had their backs to the public.  The sound 

system wasn’t really working.  Even procedure wise, you go through this whole thing and then 

only now the public can comment.  Is it possible public could comment after each agenda item?  

Mr. Maxfield said he forgot to say it on the first agenda item, and asked Mr. Boyer if he wanted to 

comment?   

 

Mr. Boyer said what does it actually mean that you are going to do?  He understands there are two 

people, one person short, that are going to go out there and do whatever.  What are they doing?  

Mr. Maxfield said there are three people.  They had four members, one person dropped off the 

EAC.  They are going to do a variety of things like contact the landowners, look at information to 

find out what the parameters are, decide what properties to look at, what not, who to contact, who 

not to, and just determine if it’s a feasible thing to do, to try and preserve the property up there.  

These guys have years of experience with it now and Ms. Ray actually preserved her property.  It 

takes a long time to work out the details for a single property and we’re talking multiple properties.  

It could take some time to do that’s why he was interested in getting it going.  It’s always a good 

thing to move things along and find out where you’re at with it, early on.  For five or six years with 

the Open Space Program, we’ve preserved about ten properties.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said what the Open Sub-Committee has been asked to do at this point is just 

evaluate what Mr. Maxfield has suggested, and see how it fits together, whether we think it would 

be feasible, how it fits in with our Open Space Plan.  We have an evaluation procedure we follow.  

Mr. Boyer asked if it was a public procedure?  Mr. Beardsley said yes, there’s an Open Space 

Action Plan which the Township has adopted, and the evaluation portion of that is in there.  Diane 

can get you a copy of it.  He thinks it’s available on the website as well.  Diane said it is on line 

under the EAC tab.  That system of scoring is scoring a property.  Is it eroded?  Does it have trees?  

Is there water features?  Rock out croppings?  Basic things we need to know about the property to 

see if it fits in with the criteria that the Township established for acquiring open space, and if it 

does, then the Open Space Committee will make a recommendation – yes or no.  Then the Town 

Council will say they want to go forward with this or not.  He doesn’t know all the ins and outs of 

the property that Mr. Maxfield is talking about but we have to go up there and actually walk it and 

see what it’s all about and see if it makes sense according to the Open Space Plan.  Mr. Boyer said 

what is the Open Space Plan?  He hasn’t seen it.  He hasn’t heard about it other than the 

terminology and then what is the purpose of the Open Space Plan?  To keep it as open space, just 

simply, and if so, what’s the use of the top of the hill.  Isn’t there a Greenway up there now?  Isn’t 

there other right-of-ways up there now that are on the top of that mountain already to find in the 

Comprehensive Plan?  Mr. Maxfield said there is always the potential for property to be developed 

in critical areas.  It could be future Council’s that change some of the rules. It could be just a 

developer who comes in with a plan and gets variances.  The best thing we know that preserves 

open space and resources is a conservation easement.  It has in it a term that is a legal term “in 

perpetuity” which means it’s basically unless it’s challenged big time by a Court or it’s decided 

otherwise by a Judge or a school board or Township decides to condemn something, it will stay 

open space.  It’s as close as we can get to a guarantee that it stays open space. To the east of the 

landfill, east of the Hill Climb, is what we call the slopes of Steel City.  That’s been identified on 

resource maps from the LVPC, from the Township, from other agencies for many, many years 

now.  It’s part of our Open Space Plan as a critical area for resources.   

Mr. Boyer said is that open space terminology equal to the open space you are talking about now?  

Mr. Maxfield said open space has some parameters to it.  We don’t rule out the possibility of 

passive recreation or even active recreation sometimes, or it could stay totally wild and run that 

whole gambit.    

 

Mr. Boyer said the question was, you mentioned in the Comprehensive Plan that Steel City slopes 

was open space.  Mr. Maxfield said it’s considered critical resource area.  It’s not open space yet.  

Mr. Beardsley said it’s not open preserved space.  Mr. Maxfield said it’s very heavily sloped.  



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 8 of 14 

There are water resources on it.  It’s not an easily developable place, but it’s got some critical plant 

species that were identified there.  It’s Bull Run which is the creek that runs down there.  It’s got 

some habitat for caves for bats.  It’s an area we are really interested in.  When you are talking about 

habitat with wildlife, it’s always great to have a greenway for them to go to some other place.  Here 

we may have the opportunity to connect to most of a greenway from that area to the Lehigh River, 

which would be pretty interesting by going across the top of the ridge.  He knows a lot of animal 

species often will use ridges because there isn’t a lot of development on ridges, so they use the 

ridge to go to get where they need to go to get water, food, whatever.  The idea for that is it’s a 

beautiful treed area now, and why not keep it that way.  The best way we know to keep it that way 

would be conservation easements.  This area will probably, if it happens, be partial properties.  A 

lot of times we will have people who will preserve their property, but they’ll cut out a section of it 

for a house or for a future house.  This may be half a property we save.  It may only be the portion 

of the property that has resources on it – trees.  We don’t want to preserve someone’s house.  

We’re always looking to cut our costs and what we buy is not the property, but a portion of the 

property which is development rights which means we buy the rights of the property to be 

developed saying basically that it can’t be developed in the future.  We own those rights through a 

conservation easement and the property owner still owns the entire piece of property, but a portion 

of it will have some restrictions on it with what they can do with it.  One of them is development, 

they can’t develop it.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said what is your interest in this potential project?  Mr. Boyer said he lives in Steel 

City.  Mr. Beardsley said you would be in favor of this or not in favor of this?  Mr. Boyer said he’s 

only seen some of the proposals, not all of them.  There’s still one outstanding for the PC to 

consider the ability to rezone some of this land. The question he would have initially is he thinks 

you are talking about land that would be rezoned and then have an easement based on the 

procedure that’s gone through you guys and Mr. Maxfield said it could take some time until you 

decide what is the proper acreage, outline or whatever.  If that’s not going to happen shortly, the 

rezoning could happen at the end of the month technically is the PC says they want to do this and 

then the Council would say do this.  It could happen fairly quickly to what you’re going to be 

proposed with, so his personal opinion is, he’s seen the Township buy an easement from people 

and pay them money for that land.  Personally, if the zoning goes through and the landfill gets 

accepted as an extension, he would be absolutely opposed to a penny going to IESI for an easement 

for the property you would want to propose.  He would not be of objection to having an easement, 

but he would not want a penny to go towards the paying of their property.  He analyzed the 

purchase of their property and one of the properties just as an example was less than an acre and 

they paid $500,000.00 for it and there wasn’t even a house on it.  It’s like they overpaid. Whatever 

the assessment would come up, he personally thinks it’s like giving them back money that they 

spent foolishly, wildly, so they could expand and now we’re going to have to pay it back to them 

and he’d be absolutely opposed to that.  If the zoning goes through, he’s not objective to the fact 

that you guys come up with an easement, but he would be standing up here shouting and saying 

that he does not want to pay a penny back to those people, partially-owned properties that they 

own, and that’s where he understood in his intellect and what was happening is where Tom came 

up with this partially-owned properties would have an easement because the last proposal of the 

zoning has two properties that IESI owns today and looking at cutting them in half so they couldn’t 

be rezoned the whole property, some of it would be and some of it wouldn’t be, but they would 

own that other property, then that property is where Tom came up with the idea that we should now 

give them an easement and preserve it.  He’s saying preserve it is fine as it’s up there on top of the 

hill, but he’s just absolutely livid about paying them back money that they overpaid for in the first 

place.   

 

Mr. Beardsley said if they don’t need all the property, is that what you are saying, that would go 

into the landfill if it expands?  Mr. Boyer said we don’t know yet because there’s a new plan 

coming up, but the last plan that they presented as an option for rezoning actually took, and he’s 

not being exact as you can’t go from a little map, but it looked like if they owned, for example, 100 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 9 of 14 

foot property, it looked like the new zoning was going to go through to rezone only 50% of that 

property and not the 100%.  Whatever the footage was.  Mr. Beardsley said first of all, if half of the 

property they purchased can’t be used by them, we would ask them to donate that property.  Put the 

easement on that property at no cost to the Township.  That would be our first suggestion.  

Secondly, any properties that the Township purchases a conservation easement on, has to be 

appraised for current fair market value and what they paid for it will be part of what the appraiser 

considers, but they also do comparable sales.  They look at other properties that are similar that 

have sold recently, and the appraiser has to come up with a number.  We don’t know at this point 

how that would work out.  That’s some background on how it works.  Mr. Boyer said how come 

these easements for certain public usage and so forth, aren’t donated originally from the people you 

bought them from?  Mr. Beardsley said some of them are, and some of them have donated a 

portion of the value because there are tax benefits to doing that.  Tax benefits for the property 

owner.  Mr. Boyer said what kind of tax benefits?  Mr. Beardsley said let’s say the easement is 

worth $100,000.00 based on the appraisal, and there in a tax bracket where they can take advantage 

of a donation to a community.  It’s like making a donation to the cancer society.  Mr. Boyer said if 

we purchase it, there are no tax benefits.  Mr. Beardsley said if it’s worth $100,000.00 and they are 

willing to give us a $50,000.00 donation and put $50,000.00 in their pocket.  They may have a 

mortgage on the property that they have to pay down.  There are all kinds of ins and outs 

ramifications that are fairly complicated and we deal with them on a case-by-case basis.  There’s 

lots of different ways this could happen that wouldn’t put a whole lot of money in the landfill’s 

pocket and they may make a donation because they have corporate taxes to pay.  A lot of times big 

corporations make donations of land to communities.  If you are in favor of the idea, then he thinks 

we have to wait and see how it falls out.  If we’re going to do it, what the appraisal would be, and it 

all depends on if and what plan gets approved for the expansion of the landfill - if it gets approved.   

 

Mr. Boyer said does this only come up that it should be open space because of the landfill?  How 

long have you been here on this committee with Open Space?  Mr. Beardsley said five years.  Mr. 

Maxfield said he doesn’t know what prompted them to draw the zoning boundary halfway through 

a property, but his idea of preserving open space as a partial property was actually from looking at 

the aerial where the power line went through.  He kind of had an idea the trees are botched where 

the power line is, so he kind of wanted to preserve the trees up to that power line.  He’d had to see 

PPL go in there.  He doesn’t know how they deal with conservation easements.  It’s a little tougher 

for them to deal with, but he would like to see that tree line cut off right where it is and save as 

much of it as possible.  It wasn’t really the zoning boundary he was looking at, it was where the 

power line passes through that whole thing.  Mr. Boyer said are you talking about vertically on that 

map or horizontally?  Mr. Maxfield said horizontally.  There’s a power line that runs across.  There 

are actually two different lines that run across the mountain and then down at the landfill and 

across.  They are talking about moving a portion of it too because we just got a notification about 

that.  What you can see across the top, those are hundred foot easements on either side of the PPL 

power lines, and they cut it right down to the ground, and he didn’t want to see any more of that 

happen.  He would like to preserve the top of that mountain and keep the trees for various reasons – 

erosion, water control, for the appearance, for the greenway, there are a million different reasons to 

preserve that. It just looked like an opportunity.  Mr. Boyer said what do you think that the PPL 

easement, how far is that away from any of the IESI property?  Mr. Maxfield said not far, it’s 

pretty close to the edge of it if he’s not mistaken.  He knows one of the things the proposal is to 

move the line may be based on the landfill’s request to expand.  They don’t have the okay from the 

Township to expand yet, it’s just like buying property.  They said they didn’t have anything to do 

with them buying the property.  If they want to go out there and buy the property, that’s their thing.  

They take the risk.  The same thing may be happening with this line.  We’re not really consulting 

where any of the stuff is going, but the landfill is talking to PPL and PPL is responding.  If the line 

does get moved, the landfill will have to pay for that movement which is, from what he saw, about 

$4 million or something like that. That’s their risk.  We aren’t in on the process there.  No one 

asked us anything about it.  Mr. Boyer said it seems they are spending an awful lot of money 

without having any okays somewhere along the line.  Mr. Maxfield said he keeps thinking they’ve 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 10 of 14 

got a lot of money to spend.  He doesn’t know what else to think about that.  Mr. Beardsley said 

did they actually purchase the properties or do they have options to buy?  Mr. Boyer said they 

spend already $4.5 million on properties and they have options to buy more.  It’s all gone already, 

it’s in the County.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said Skyline Drive that goes along there, they have most of the properties below 

Skyline Drive and some of the properties above it, especially the ones to the east.  The other ones 

that are further to the west where Chief Lesser and people like that still live there, he’s sure they 

are going to try to acquire it.  Mr. Beardsley said he talked to some lady quite a while ago and they 

bought her property and gave her a right to stay there for ten years or whatever it is.  It could be 

one year, but they bought her property.  Mr. Maxfield said there are properties right next to the 

landfill, two or three, at the top of Skyline Drive where there are houses on there with swimming 

pools, and nobody is living in them, the landfill owns them and they are empty.  He doesn’t know 

what they are thinking.  They are hedging their bets.  Mr. Johnson said the land we are thinking 

about preserving is all owned by IESI or by individual people?  Mr. Maxfield said by individual 

people.  Mr. Johnson said we have to convince them to go along with the idea.  Mr. Maxfield said 

or find out if they are even interested, that’s what he wanted you to do. You are also talking about a 

portion of the property where Columbia Gas tanks are.  There are a couple of absentee owners that 

are from other municipalities that are to the western side of that and as it goes down the hill, he 

doesn’t know who owns that.  It might even be PPL who owns it.  Mr. Johnson said the problem is 

we offer the people the amount we can offer, they could say they can get more from a developer, 

especially if IESI is buying up land.  If they have any idea at all about selling to IESI, they are 

going to say they are not interested.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s where we are stuck. The appraisals 

Mr. Beardsley was talking about, PA law allows for two appraisals and you can go with one 

appraisal, but you can’t go above that appraisal.  The Township cannot pay money above that 

appraisal.  We can pay a lot less if we can get away with it, but if you get two appraisals, the 

Township pays two, you split the difference.  Is that how it goes?  Mr. Beardsley said usually.  Mr. 

Maxfield said that’s what we are limited to, so a halfway point between those two, that’s as much 

as we can pay.  That’s how much competition we don’t have with developers.  If a developer 

comes in and they get a lot more money from them, they say goodbye Township.  Mr. Johnson said 

we are looking into it and when we see what area we want to preserve, we have to go to the 

landowners and see if they are interested. We have to get permission from them to walk the land.  

What we’re doing now is just from topographical aerial view.   

 

Mr. Boyer said if this is such a raw state of beginning, who decides that you are going to do down 

to Shimersville Road or just to go one property past IESI.  Who is going to decide that kind of 

decision to look at this even?  Mr. Johnson said we will from getting our heads together about this 

concept and get a better understanding of what it is and then after we look at some aerial views and 

find out where the parcel lines are, then we can decide who we want to talk to.  Mr. Maxfield said 

ultimately Council will decide.  These guys make a good strong recommendation and we listen to 

it.  They are going to do most of the leg work.  They are going to go out there and find out what is 

possible. Mr. Boyer said what is possible?  Mr. Maxfield said that’s what they are going to find 

out. It’s all based on the interest of the landowner.  If the landowner is not interested, there’s 

nothing we can do.  Mr. Boyer said he would say that’s wrong.  It’s based on the interest of you 

guys to first find out what you want. Not the interest of the landowners who don’t even probably 

know about this yet.  It’s really your interest first, so what is your interest?  Mr. Beardsley said they 

haven’t even looked at a map yet.  He doesn’t know how the property lines work, who the owners 

are and we’re going to make a recommendation to the EAC about this project based on the 

resources that we think are on the property that need to be preserved or we would want to preserve.  

If it’s steep slopes, we have to see where the slopes are and we have to look at topo maps and see 

the portion we can draw a line.  For example, when we bought the Dravecz property, there are old 

logging trails in it and it goes up the side of the mountain, at the bottom of the mountain, there’s a 

creek.  The property owner wanted to sell this part, but not the part where the creek was.  We 

talked to him and convinced him it would be a good idea to put a conservation easement on the 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 11 of 14 

portion of the property that was between the creek and where the trees started going up the 

mountain as it would be a buffer for anybody that built a house on the other side of the creek.  It 

would protect the creek and it would be a buffer for the portion that we bought outright that’s going 

to be a trail system eventually, and be part of the park system for the Township.  We can’t sit here 

without ever having seen a map or talk to any of the property owners or seen the property and tell 

you what the projects going to look like.  Mr. Boyer asked who are you talking about - whose 

property did you buy and easement?  Mr. Beardsley said it’s Dravecz on Apple Street.  Mr. Boyer 

is this the very first and you’re not really sure what’s happening and don’t know what resources are 

there, you don’t know what this can even be  used for, it’s like, what are we making the buffer for?  

Mr. Maxfield said a buffer does exactly that, it buffers.  It will buffer your community, anything 

that happens on the other side, even if someone puts in warehouses going up the slope, you’re 

going to see a buffer there.  For example, Rocky Viscioto said his kids are up there playing in the 

woods all the time, that made Mr. Maxfield think he wants to preserve those woods because he 

remembers how special that was to him.  If that’s kind of thing, a visual buffer and a real buffer, 

storm water buffer, whatever else that the woods will do there in place forever between that and 

anything, whether it’s landfill, warehouse, a goat farm or whatever, as long as there’s a buffer 

there.  As long as that buffer can be there, that’s what is important to him.  He’d like to see that 

there.  Ted said we don’t know what’s there resource-wise, but from looking at these maps over the 

years, we have a pretty good idea.  We know it’s slopes; we know it’s wood.  We don’t know the 

exact pieces of it, but we have a pretty good idea that it’s a special place.  

 

Mr. Boyer said what is the greenway and all of that?  Doesn’t that have any kind of conservation 

efforts into it as far as the saving that area than having someone put up a skyscraper there or 

something being built crazy or developed?  Mr. Maxfield said PA is a heavy property rights state 

which means if you own a piece of property you have many, many more rights than anybody else 

who is trying to do anything with that property.  A lot of the things you’ll see like the greenways 

plan from LVPC or there’s another greenways group in the valley that are doing things or our 

resource identification maps, any of that kind of stuff is all there as a resource, but there’s no power 

associated with it at all.  It’s your ability to go out and talk with these people and convince them 

that it’s a good idea to do and why and to get them as partners to help you preserve this thing.  

There are people that can give you money to preserve a greenway, but it doesn’t give you the 

ability to just go out and get that greenway.  You still have to convince people they need a 

greenway on their property; that their property is valuable because it connects to another property.  

It’s all about partnerships.  Mr. Boyer said he’s getting confused.  You are saying no one will give 

you money for the greenway.  You are going to give them money for the greenway.  They already 

own the property that’s in the greenway.  You are going to give them money.  Mr. Maxfield said 

you are buying a portion of their property.  You are buying their development rights.  Ted talked on 

the Dravecz property, it was offered to us as an outright purchase because the guy didn’t want to do 

conservation easements on it.  He just wanted to get rid of the property, so we bought the entire 

piece of property, but portions of it then where he did want to retain, we were able to buy the rights 

to it, so that he still owns the property, but we own the rights to it.  We basically control a lot of 

what can happen on that property.  This is a process that takes a long time because it’s convoluted 

and each deal that you make for a conservation easement is an individual thing, it’s a specialized 

thing.  If we have five different property owners, we could have five very different conservation 

easements with different language, with different parameters on it, but it still has to serve the goal 

of establishing some type of greenway buffer up there.  There are certain things we can deal with.  

There are certain things we insist on, but we’re going to try and see what we can get.  Mr. Johnson 

said we decided that certain parts of that land should be preserved and he thinks that’s the 

greenway Mr. Boyer is talking about.  They suggested that this land has certain features that are 

valuable to the environment and therefore we should label it as an important piece of property and 

then we have another report or document that suggests preserving it. These are all suggestions.  

That’s one of the ways we decide what land to look at.  Land that’s already been pointed out by 

some other organization with a lot more paid people than we have that studied this stuff.  They 

designated this as land that should be preserved.  Mr. Boyer said Tom is saying it doesn’t count as 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 12 of 14 

there’s nothing there that has authority.  It’s just talk.  Mr. Johnson said it’s just their suggestion.  It 

used to be this way, but with lack of money now for land preservation with the government, if you 

had a piece of property that they designate as property that is good to preserve, your greenway, and 

we find a landowner who is interested in preserving property within that greenway, then we can get 

money from the County.  It won’t just be Township money; we can get some money from the 

County.  That’s the way it used to be, but now the County is having shortfalls, and they are pulling 

back on open space.  They still have money for farm preservation, but that is a different program 

than open space preservation.  It has a higher priority because of many of the people in the County 

who have big farms up north of here and the farmer’s have a lot of influence on the County than 

the open space people.  There’s still some open space influence.  Mr. Boyer said the money you 

were talking about that is limited is from the County and not necessarily from the Township?  Mr. 

Johnson said no, the Township has money from the open space, one-quarter percent, and the 

Township has some money to use to pay people for their development rights.  Mr. Boyer said is the 

money designated to specific types of properties?  Mr. Johnson said it’s designated to open space.  

Mr. Beardsley said their role as an Open Space Sub-Committee is to try and match those things 

together – what the open space does and does that property fit into that plan.   

 

Mr. Boyer said this gentleman was talking about the County fitting into it.  Mr. Beardsley said 

sometimes the County will throw in some money if it fits into their parameters.  Mr. Maxfield said 

part of some of what the state insists on is that if they give you money for preservation, it has to 

have public access.  The public would have to be able to go on it in some shape or form and use it 

for hiking or whatever.  We don’t have that as a Township, we’d rather preserve the space and not 

impede on somebody’s property.  The other thing he wanted to mention as up there where it says 

natural features plan, those kind of maps are put together by LVPC or the County and for instance, 

they will say this is a greenway map and all they do is do a fly over and find out where there are 

trees and they call it a greenway.  It’s not really a recommendation to preserve that area as a 

greenway; it’s just identification of a greenway.  All you need is so many square feet to be a 

greenway.  On a couple of those plans, they identified that stretch as a greenway which is true.  It’s 

an existing greenway, but it may not be a greenway that is safe.  It may be developable or 

something like that and there’s no guarantees that just because it appears on any of those maps that 

some property owner or anybody can’t just come in there and blast it wide open. No guarantee at 

all.  Property owners have great power in PA.  Mr. Johnson said that’s where our zoning and 

development codes come into play. There’s a lot of convincing that has to be done.   

 

Mr. Boyer said do you have any estimate of long it would take you to just talk to these people?  Mr. 

Beardsley said we have to find out how many owners there are.  If there are 15 owners, it will take 

a little longer than if there were two owners.  He couldn’t really give you an estimate at this point.  

Mr. Johnson said usually we wait for a property owner to express interest to the Township that he’s 

interested in a conservation easement.  This is a little bit different.  We’re going to have to go out 

and ask these people.  It’s different for us so we don’t’ know what kind of an attitude we’re going 

to run into.  Mr. Maxfield said he knows of at least four property owners. One is an absentee 

landowner from someplace else, there’s IESI, the Hill Climb, and Columbia Gas.  That’s just in 

that stretch and there’s more east and west of there.  It’s going to be a process for sure.  Mr. 

Beardsley said Columbia Gas may be easy to deal with, and the landfill may not be.  You don’t 

know until you start.  The only reason he says that is Columbia Gas has given right-of-ways, made 

hiking trails, and biking trails in Jersey and other places, so they may be into this.  They may say 

this is a good idea and it’s good community relations for them to do it.  They can be easy to deal 

with and a private property owner may say no.  They may say they are hoping the landfill expands 

and will buy their property in five years and they can get more money.  You don’t know until you 

start how it’s going to shake out.    

 

Mr. Boyer asked about the open space plan. Mr. Beardsley said it’s the whole idea of why we want 

to preserve open space and the kind of open space that we’d like to preserve and then in the back 

last few pages it has the criteria that we use to evaluate a piece of property.  Mr. Johnson said we 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 13 of 14 

modified that.  Mr. Beardsley said he doesn’t know if it’s been changed on the website.  We’ll have 

to look.  We can get you that.  Mr. Maxfield said they were small modifications.  Mr. Johnson said 

how much value, how much weight we give to each type of a natural resource that’s on a property. 

Mr. Maxfield said or whether it was developable or not.  Mr. Beardsley said whether development 

was threatened.  Those are the kind of things that went into that.  Mr. Johnson said water, scenic 

view, farmland.  Mr. Boyer said how about vegetation as far as some things up there already that 

are unique?  Mr. Maxfield said on the eastern slopes, the Steel City slopes, it would be east of the 

Hill Climb area and where the gun club is, we walked those slopes with a Botanist, Ann Rhoades, 

who has written a book on state plants, she found some endangered species along the slopes that 

we don’t really reveal the location of because they are collector plants.  They are plants that will 

make a lot of money for people, so we don’t really identify the type of plant or where they are at 

over there, but there were a lot of those things there.  They took readings on trees as they thought 

they might be state significant trees because of their size.  It’s a special place.  The creek, Bull Run, 

is amazing.  The water in places goes under the ground and then pops back up again in the stream 

bed somewhere else.  It’s just geological neat.  There are ravines; it’s loaded with hundreds of 

springs that come off of the mountain.  Right now it’s being used for hunting.  Mr. Boyer said does 

one person own that?  Mr. Maxfield said no, there are three or four people who own it.  There’s one 

guy that has about 144 acres.  We’ve talked to him.  One of the owners is Pichel on top of the 

mountain.  There’s a couple more down there.  The City of Bethlehem owns part of it.  There are 

even parts that are owned by Walters.  It’s a really cool area, but to be able to connect that to 

something else, the idea behind preserving open space is connection too.  It’s like these areas 

become little islands unless you can connect them to other areas that are special too.  Hence, 

greenway, that’s what greenway is about, trying to connect.   

 

Mr. Boyer said what you think you are proposing is something the public will never get to use 

anyway?  Mr. Maxfield said not necessarily.  It could be a trail that runs across the mountain.  One 

of the things that Mrs. Yerger and we’ve been talking to the landfill about for the last few years is 

trying to get them, instead of the normal ugly grass they have planted there, to plant warm season 

grasses which turns into a field.  Like Waste Management up in Pen Argyl has that kind of thing 

and this last Spring DCNR ran tours for habitat, for birding through there.  They mow it one time a 

year so it keeps the trees down so the roots don’t go down and damage the lining, but they have 

grasses and it’s an incredible habitat there.  He’d rather look at that than see from the river a grassy 

slope and would rather see a field of grasses.  Mr. Boyer said he heard this and read this that you 

made these comments before.  You’ve even made the comment on record that Glenn had said the 

same thing.  You can’t get these people to do anything.  They don’t seem to be following the 

suggestions.  More than once, and more than that particular agreement, you have not been able to 

get them to do things, so that’s why part of the people are concerned and Ted didn’t seem to know 

about the landfill so much or didn’t recognize it, but that’s some of the things he feels as a resident, 

of this expansion, is today you folks on the Council, in the Township, and Cahalan, I think have not 

been able to do certain things you’ve asked them to do which seems to be somewhat simple.  Is it 

going to be that more expensive for them to put in grass?  Is it going to take them that much more 

time to put in that kind of grass?  Mr. Maxfield said it might be more time for them.  They have to 

get everything that they do approved by their parent company.  That’s part of the problem.  Mr. 

Boyer said that’s his iceberg effect.  Mr. Maxfield said we’re talking landfill.  They do give us $1.8 

million a year.  Chrin gives their community nothing.  He’s built community centers and things like 

that for them, but we do get this amount of money.  Every time the landfill needs something, every 

time they need to expand, every time they want to change the host agreement, they have to show 

that they are doing some kind of good for the community.  If they were to expand this time, one of 

the plans that he and Sandy have, if it does go through, is to say we need to see these grasses here.  

We don’t want it to be an ugly scar on the Township.  We want it to look like a hill that’s a 

meadow.  It doesn’t impede their function in any way; it’s just a little more of a pain in the butt for 

them.  It should cost them less money in maintenance, but there are some things we can do.  They 

have to want something from us.  This time they want an expansion.  Mr. Boyer said that’s the 

whole thing.  Mr. Johnson said Chrin doesn’t give tipping fees?  Mr. Maxfield said that’s what they 



Environmental Advisory Council 

September 11, 2012  

 

Page 14 of 14 

were told.  Mr. Johnson said isn’t that a state law?  Mr. Maxfield said that’s part of the host 

agreement unless he got it wrong all these years.  Someone just told him a couple of months ago 

that Chrin gives them things.  He can say he gave this community center, so therefore, he gave 

back to the community.  These guys say we’re giving them $1.8 million a year.  Tonnage isn’t 

going to go down.  In fact, they want a tonnage increase.  Glenn came right out at the meeting and 

said he’s against the increase, so if it were to go through, that what we would try to do and he’s just 

guessing, is keep them at the same exact rate they are at now and just preserve it further into the 

future, like ten years.  They said it could be ten years, it could be fourteen.  That depends on the 

tonnage.  We don’t want a tonnage increase.  Who wants more traffic?  Who wants more junk 

coming up and down the road?  We’re not going to expand the hours.  Some of these landfills in 

other states go 24 hours a day, so the people living near the landfill is hearing trucks 24 hour a day.  

It would be like where Matt McClarin lives, listening to the train 24 hours a day.  We don’t want 

that kind of thing and that’s just if it goes through.  It depends on what the other Council members 

think.  He doesn’t know what they are thinking at this point.   

 

Mr. Boyer said his point is the Council has not been able to control them and it’s just becomes a 

mute point.  If we know it’s only going to happen for four or five years, and then they want to 

expand for ten to twelve more years, we have to put up with this for another ten years that you 

can’t control them.  If your logic is because it’s corporate, then it’s like, why are we really 

worrying about this and cut them off and solve our problems financially.  Cut them off, and say we 

don’t want to worry about what corporate is because these guys are employees.  They can all go 

away and someone else comes in and runs the show and runs it differently than these people do.  

Mr. Maxfield said that’s true, we’ve been lucky.  Mr. Boyer said you call it lucky and he’s calling 

it not lucky because they are not following what you are doing already.  Mr. Maxfield said they 

have to follow all of our laws.  What they are not always in agreement with is our suggestions.  If 

they were to expand, they still have to follow under all of the zoning ordinances.  They get waivers 

for things like ground disturbance, but they still have to follow all the rules.  They can’t do 

whatever they want to.  They are under control.  We do make suggestions and sometimes they 

follow and sometimes they don’t.  For awhile we were trying to rescue that little building out on 

the road as it was part of the farms that one of our Township residents who remembered living 

there back in the 30’s and 40’s and they said they wanted to talk to corporate and we didn’t hear 

anything more about it.  That was a suggestion, but there are laws they have to obey.  He was 

talking to an Environmental Engineer who is on our Landfill Committee and he said they are the 

most regulated business in the state.  There are people looking at them all the time from DEP to the 

Township to the host inspector to just gobs of people looking in on what they are doing.  He wants 

to have him talk at one of these meetings as he’s a professional and sits on our Landfill and on our 

EAC.  He wants his perspective.   

 

 Mr. Maxfield said take the brochure “Rising Waters”.  It’s the conference we’ve gone to years that 

happens every 18 months.  If you want to go, you can call the Township.  Jack Cahalan and Charlie 

Luthar are talking at this one on flooding.  There are other interesting topics.  Nurture Nature is one 

of the main presenters there.   

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Beardsley moved for adjournment.  The time was 9:05 P.M. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Yerger and Mr. Guerra – Absent) 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sandra Yerger, Chair 

 


